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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conmm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABCR, CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. CENT 81-271-M
PETI TI ONER A. C. No. 29-01375-05008F
V.

M. Taylor Project Mne
GULF M NERAL RESOURCES
COVPANY,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appearances: Eloise V. Vellucci, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,
U S. Departnment of Labor, Dallas, Texas,
for Petitioner;
John A. Bachmann, Esqg., Gulf M neral Resources
Conpany, Denver, Col orado,
for Respondent.

Bef or e: Judge Morris

Thi s case, heard under the provisions of the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. (0801, et seq., (the
"Act"), arose froma March 2, 1981 inspection of respondent's M.
Tayl or Project Mne. The Secretary of Labor seeks to inpose two
civil penalties because respondent allegedly violated the Act and
a regul ati on promul gated under the Act.

Respondent deni es that any viol ations occurred.

After notice to the parties, a hearing on the nerits was
hel d i n Al buquerque, New Mexico on June 1, 1983.

Respondent filed a post trial brief.
| ssues

The i ssues are whether respondent violated the Act and the
regul ati on.

Stipul ation

The parties agreed that at the time of the inspection the
size of the conpany was 1, 120,484 production pounds per year. The
size of its M. Taylor Project uraniummne was 872, 540
producti on pounds per year. The parties further stipul ated that
the m ne was no |longer in production (Tr. 5).
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Citation 152663

This citation alleges respondent violated Section 108(b) of
the Act in that the operator delayed three MSHA inspectors in
their investigation of a fatal accident at the mne

Section 108(a)(1l) provides, in part, as foll ows:

The Secretary may institute a civil action for relief,

i ncluding a permanent or tenporary injunction
restraining order, or any other appropriate order in
the district court of the United States for the
district in which a coal or other mine is |ocated or in
whi ch the operator of such mne has his principa

of fice, whenever such operator or his agent

(B) interferes with, hinders, or delays the
Secretary or his authorized representative,

. in carrying out the provisions of this
Act .

Prior to the hearing the judge advised the parties that the
pertinent provision of the Act was Section 103(a) and not the
cited section. [Order, February 28, 1983; Waukesha Linme and Stone
Conpany, Inc., 3 FMSHRC 1702 (1981) ].

Pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure the
conplaint is anended to allege a violation of Section 103(a) of
the Act. Rule 15(b), F.RCP

The pertinent part of Section 103(a) provides as follows:

For the purpose of making any inspection or
i nvestigation under this Act, the Secretary .

with respect to fulfilling his responsibilities under
this Act, or any authorized representative of the
Secretary . . . have a right of entry to, upon, or

t hrough any coal or other mne
Sunmary of the Evidence

MSHA' s evi dence indicates that at approximtely 11:40 a. m
on March 2, 1981, Thomas Castor, the supervisory mning inspector
at the MSHA Al buquerque office was advised of a fatality at
respondent's nine. The supervisor dispatched a special
i nvestigator and two inspectors to the mne (Tr. 7-9, 13). The
three nen travelled to the mne in two vehicles. Since the mne
was approxi mately 100 mles from Al buquerque, they had to pick up
clothing at their hones in anticipation of an overnight stay (Tr.
9).

The purpose of an MSHA investigation is to determ ne the
cause of an accident and to recommend net hods of preventing
simlar accidents. MSHA goes to the scene of a fatality as soon
as possible. MSHA investigators prefer to interview w tnesses
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and then take themto the scene for a detailed analysis and
reconstruction of the occurrence (Tr. 9, 10, 26, 40). By law, an
operator is also required to nmake a conplete detail ed acci dent
report. But the operator does not have to give its report to NMSHA
unless it is requested. (Tr. 31, 32). MSHA accepts an acci dent
report from operators on Form No. 7000-1 even though there are
nore than 20 nminers at the reporting mne (Tr. 30, 33).

The accident at this mine occurred at 9:45 a.m Since NMSHA
was not advised until 11:40 a.m, respondent was cited for a
violation of 30 C F.R [50.10. (FOOTNOTE 1) That citation is now a fina
order of the commi ssion (Tr. 10, 11).

I nspect or Oner Sauvageau reached the mne at 3:30 p.m He
waited at the mne office for Inspectors Tanner and Si sk who
arrived at 3:45 p.m to 3:50 p.m (Tr. 95, 96).

I nspector WIliam Tanner, Jr. estimates that he arrived at
the m ne between 3:00 and 3:30 p.m In the neeting roomthey
i ntroduced thensel ves to respondent’'s representatives John
Thonpson and David Wl fe. Tanner asked if they could interview
the two eyew tnesses and the two | ocation witnesses so they could
continue their investigation. Conpany representative Dershiner
said the witnesses were not avail abl e because they were being
interviewed by the conpany attorney (Tr. 37, 38, 40, 60, 95, 96).
At that point L.E. Lewis went to check. Upon returning, Lew s
said it would be another 30 m nutes before the MSHA i nspectors
could interview the witnesses. Lewi s suggested the inspectors go
underground to visit the scene. They did (Tr. 38, 39). The only
comment, which was repeated to the inspectors, was that it was
@Qulf's policy for their attorneys to confer with its w tnesses
bef ore MSHA i nspectors could talk to them The conpany did not
state to the inspectors that they were conducting their own
i nvestigation (Tr. 39, 63). For their part, the inspector did not
suggest they should join the conpany attorney (Tr. 61, 62).

I nspector Tanner told Wlfe the conpany woul d be cited and
he issued Citation 152663 for a violation of Section 108(b) of
the Act. The citation was given to the conpany three days |ater
It was issued because the witnesses were not available. The MSHA
i nvestigation was del ayed and hindered at the scene because the
i nspectors could not get the conments of the w tnesses firsthand
(Tr. 41-43, 71, 72). The witnesses were interviewed at 6:00 p. m
that day (Tr. 43).
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Respondent' s evi dence indi cates the conpany called MSHA and the
state inspectors at approximately 11:20 a.m on the day of the
accident. The state inspectors, enroute on another natter
arrived ten mnutes after being called. They went underground to
i nvestigate and they also interviewed three or four w tnesses
(Tr. 101, 102).

Company representatives Jerry Orer (safety) and Terry Cull en
(attorney) arrived from Denver the same day at approxi mately 3:30
p.m They began interview ng the witnesses 15 to 30 mi nutes
before the MSHA inspectors arrived (Tr. 102, 103, 113, 114).

After the MBHA inspectors arrived, Cullen requested an
additional 20 to 30 mnutes to conplete his interviews. (FOOINOTE 2)

Respondent's manager F.K. Dershinmer requested that the

i nspectors make the trip underground while Cullen continued his

i nterviews. The inspectors voiced no objection, nor did they give
an indication that they felt they were being del ayed, hindered or
i nconveni enced (Tr. 104-106, 114, 115). The MSHA inspectors, as
suggested, went underground (Tr. 106). The first notice of any

di ssatisfaction with this arrangenent was when Dershi mer received
the citation (Tr. 107, 116, 117).

If the inspectors had requested a joint interview of the
wi t nesses Dershiner would have checked with Cullen to see if it
was "okey" (Tr. 115, 116). Respondent has never prohibited
i nspectors fromtal king to conmpany witnesses. Further, there is
no such conpany policy (Tr. 105, 115, 116).
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Di scussi on

Section 103(a) of the Act authorizes the Secretary to enter
any mine. On the essentially uncontroverted facts in this case
there was no refusal or delay of the Secretary's right of entry.
On the contrary, respondent facilitated the entry of the
i nspectors to the site. The only delay, if there was one,
occurred when the conpany attorney requested additional tine to
interview the witnesses. This scenario, at best, establishes that
respondent mininmally interfered with the sequence in which NMSHA
prefers to conduct its investigation. But, construed in a |ight
nost favorable to MSHA, these facts would not constitute a denial
of the Secretary's right to enter the nine

Section 50.11(a) of Title 30 of the Code of Federal
Regul ati ons provides for accident investigations to be perforned
at the discretion of MSHA district or subdistrict managers. Once
t he decision to conduct an investigation has been nade, Section
103(a) of the Act provides MSHA i nspectors with broad powers in
t he exercise of such an investigation. An inspector has the right
of entry into any mne. While 30 C F.R 0[050.11(a) requires that
notice be given prior to the investigation of accidents, the
Supreme Court has held that no warrant is required to conduct
such an inspection. Donovan v. Dewey, 452 U S. 594, 101 S. C
2534 (1981). However, neither the Act nor any inplenenting
regul ati ons mandate the interview ng of witnesses as the initial
step in an investigation.

Accordingly, on the facts |I conclude that no violation of
Section 103(a) occurred. Ctation 152663 and all penalties should
be vacat ed.

Citation 152667

This citation charges respondent with violating Title 30,
Code of Federal Regul ations, Section 57.8-2, which provides:

Mandatory. (a) A conpetent person designated by the
operator shall exam ne each working place at |east once
each shift for conditions which may adversely affect
safety or health. The operator shall pronptly initiate
appropriate action to correct such conditions.

Sunmmary of the Evidence

MSHA | nspector WIIliam Tanner, Jr. issued Citation 152667
because two nmen with authority at this particular work place
failed to insist on the crew foll owi ng the proper procedure for
repl acing the post (Tr. 44, 45).
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Superintendent Sullivan had been present a few m nutes before
m ner Mal donado was killed. In addition, |eadman Baca was present
and on one occasion the victimhinself was considered to be a
"conpetent person” within the terns of the MSHA regul ation (Tr.
46, 47).

MSHA construes a "conpetent person” in Section 57.8-2 to be
one qualified by ability and experience, who makes safety checks,
prevents unsafe acts, and who works in this particul ar area of
the mne (Tr. 45, 53, 88). There was nothing to indicate to the
i nspecto that a safety check had been made or that a conpetent
person had | ooked over the area before everyone "got into place"
(Tr. 46, 53).

Sullivan, the |evel superintendent, cane in about 9:30 a.m
and tal ked to | eadman Baca about changi ng out the steel posts
(Tr. 47).

At the intersection of 3N and 3E, the place of the accident,
a cap goes directly across the back. It is supported by two
posts. These posts are steel |-beans 8 inches by 8 inches and 10
feet long (Tr. 47). The cap is bolted by four bolts on each end
(Tr. 47). A collar brace, a knee brace, and a toe brace tie al
of this steel together to keep it fromfalling (Tr. 47).

According to the miners, on this particular day they cut al
the collar braces off one side with a torch. The other side had
only one collar brace. The inspector did not know why it was not
supported (Tr. 48). At approximately 9:30 a.m, Sullivan and Baca
di scussed changing the post. Sullivan left w thout |ooking to see
if the area was safe. At that time victimMal donado was dri ving
up with the replacenment, a slightly larger post (Tr. 48).

When Sullivan was at the intersection there was one coll ar
brace on one side and none on the other (Tr. 49). Normal
procedure to renove and replace a post is to stick a direction
boom under the cap and hold it up while a worker renoves the
bolts. After the bolts are renoved the post is wthdrawn and
repl aced with the new post while the boom holds up the 2,000
pound cap. The cap itself neasures 21 feet by 21 1/2 feet (Tr.
49, 50).

The normal way to unscrew the bolts would be to clinb up a
| adder and renove them after the cap has been secured. On this
particul ar day Ml donado clinbed on top of the erection boom and
was j ockeyed into position. Barela handed hi ma one-inch inpact
wrench and Mal donado spun off the bolts w thout making sure the
area was secured in any way.

After the bolts were spun off the cap | eaned over. As it
di d, Mal donado clinbed off of the erecti on boom pedestal (which
was to be used only for lifting the cap). He then crawl ed down
the boominto the bucket (Tr. 51-52). That's when the cap cane
down striking himin the back and killing him(Tr. 51, 52).
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Baca, the |ead mner, had not attenpted to stop Mal donado. In
addition, he did not see that the cap and post were secure (Tr.
51). Elliott, a co-worker, had to go after a | adder. He could
have held the post to keep it fromfalling over. The cause of the
acci dent was that nothing was secure (Tr. 51). This accident
woul d not have happened had the cap been secured, pinned, or
supported by the pedestal (Tr. 52).

The conpany said Baca and Sullivan were desi gnhated
"conpetent persons.” Sullivan told the inspector he did not
i nvestigate but he instructed the I eadman in his duties (Tr. 53,
81-82). John Thonpson and David Wl fe told the inspector they
were "conpetent persons” and so designhated by the conpany (Tr.
80-81).

The inspector did not check the | og books from previous
shifts to see who had signed the | ogs as the desi gnated person
(Tr. 82, 83).

This crew had changed out the post on the opposite side of
the drift the previous day (Tr. 88). On that occasi on, Ml donado,
who was then the | eadnman, perfornmed the sane task (Tr. 91-92).

Respondent' s evi dence: F.K. Dershinmer, the acting genera
manager, testified that the m ne captain designates the |evel
supervi sor as the "conpetent person,” for the purpose of the
regul ation. If the |level supervisor is not present, then the mne
captai n does the wal k-through for safety checks or he designates
anot her person. Conpliance with the wal k-through is recorded on
the shift report under the portion marked as "Supervisor". The
time of the safety check, followed by the supervisor's initials,
are also entered on the shift report (Tr. 118, 119, Exhibit R 1).
If the supervisor saw sonething that needed to be fixed he would
so direct (Tr. 123).

James Sullivan was in the enploy of respondent between
January 30, 1978 to May 14, 1982. He has 12 years of m ning
experience. He was hired as a long-hole driller and | ater was
promoted to | evel supervisor, then to level foreman (Tr. 129-131
152). Sullivan's experience in replacing posts has come about by
wat ching Harrison & Western crews, in inspecting, and as a hel per
ininstalling steel (Tr. 162). Sullivan considered hinself
conpet ent because he has used good judgment in putting up stee
(Tr. 162).

Lead miner Baca had the responsibility for watching this
crew and seeing they work safely (Tr. 158, 159). But only
Sul l'ivan, and not Baca, had the responsibility to check the
entire level (Tr. 159).

On the day before this accident the sane crew had changed
out the post on the opposite side of the drift. Ml donado
descri bed the correct procedure to Sullivan. When he was on the
scene, Sullivan discussed the situation with Cruz and Franci sco.
He told themto follow the sanme directions as before. On the day
he was killed, Ml donado was doing the work inproperly and he was



not follow ng his stated procedure (Tr. 165-168).
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According to Sullivan, the post to be changed out was not collar
braced when he passed through the area. He didn't recall if it
was pinned at the bottom In addition, he didn't know how the
post hol ding the |-beamwas braced (Tr. 164).

Changi ng posts is not hazardous. The proper way is to
position the boom under the cap to hold it fast. Two workers then
put a | adder at the post being changed. One worker renoves the
bolts. The boomis then raised slightly to rel ease the downward
pressure on the post. A worker then | ays down the post and
installs the replacenent post (Tr. 166). Normally the crew woul d
automatically install a collar brace (Tr. 169).

The MSHA regul ation requires one safety inspection by a
"conpetent person”. Respondent requires two. On the day of the
fatality, inspections were performed by Ray WIlis during the day
shift. If Sullivan had not been required to | eave the | evel, he
woul d have done the inspections and signed the logs (Tr. 167,

169, Exhibit R 1).

Di scussi on

MSHA' s regul ation, Section 57.18-2, inposes two broad
requi renents on an operat or

The first: The operator shall designate a person who is
conpetent to exam ne each working place each shift for conditions
whi ch may adversely affect safety or health.

The second: If there are defective conditions, the operator
t hrough his "conpetent person,” shall initiate appropriate
action.

W will review these requirenments in the light of the
evidence in the case. First of all, did respondent designate a
person to exanm ne each working place?

Yes, | find that witness Janes Sullivan was so designated by
the conpany. He so testified. Further, the conpany records
(Exhibit R 1) establish that Sullivan, as supervisor, initiated
and indicated the tinmes of the safety checks on March 3 and 4,
1981. He woul d have perforned the safety checks on March 2 but,
due to the accident, he went to the surface.

The inspector testified there was nothing to indicate that a
"conpetent person” had | ooked over the area. But | am not
persuaded by the inspector's testinony. He admits he did not
check the conpany | ogs on this point.

Was Sullivan conpetent as a safety inspector?

Yes, | find that Sullivan's broad experience includes 12
years as a mner. He was hired as a long-hole driller, pronoted
to | evel supervisor and then |evel foreman. He has hel ped instal
steel,



~1164
wat ched other crews working with it, and he has inspected in
connection with this activity.

The Secretary wai ved cl osing argunment and a post trial
brief; hence, it is somewhat difficult to perceive his position
But the citation and the evidence suggest several facets. The
citation alleges that the person designated by the conpany as
conpetent did not exam ne the work place "before work comenced.”
If the Secretary had intended a pre-shift inspection he could
have done so as he did in 30 CF. R 57.3-22 and 57.19-129.

An additional element filtering through the evidence is that
Baca, the lead mner, or for that matter anyone in charge of the
crew, was the "conpetent person"” under the regul ation. Therefore,
such a "conpetent person” woul d have prevented the unsafe acts.

| reject such a view of the regulation. On the facts,
nei t her Baca nor anyone in the crew were so designated by the
conpany as the "conpetent person” at the tine of the accident.

A secondary factor appearing in MSHA's evidence is that the
"conpetent person” shoul d have been present when all of the
workers were "in place.” If so, he could have stopped Ml donado's
unsafe acts.

The regul ati on does not require the "conpetent person" to
antici pate unsafe acts by an enployee. This record establishes
that the changing of the post was not inherently dangerous. In
addition, the crew was experienced. Ml donado had hinsel f renoved
the post on the opposite side of the drift on the previous shift.
Further, he recited the proper procedure to Sullivan. The crew
was told to proceed as before. For the foregoing reasons, |
concl ude that respondent conplied with the initial portion of the
regul ati on; nanely, the conpany designated a conpetent person to
exam ne the work pl aces.

The second broad requirenent of the regul ati on mandates that
the conpetent person initiate appropriate action if there is a
defective condition. Sinply put, was there a defective condition
when Sul livan was present?

No, at the time Sullivan was present the nost unfavorable
scenario was that the post being changed out was not collar
braced. But no evidence establishes that this in and of itself is
a defective condition. Even without the collar brace the stee
was al so tied together with a knee brace, a toe brace and secured
by four bolts. Sullivan was at the intersection of Drift 3N 3E at
approximately 9:35 a.m to 9:40 a.m on March 2, 1981. At that
ti me Mal donado was driving the loader in with the replacenent
post (Exhibit R 2). There was nothing to indicate to Sullivan
that a defective condition existed. Further, there was nothing to
i ndi cate that the post could not be changed wi thout incident.
Under these facts he was entitled to proceed with his safety
check survey at the other work places on the 3100 |evel.
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Along with other contentions in its post trial brief respondent
argues that the inspection perforned by Sullivan at the beginning
of the shift was not an "official inspection". Therefore, it is
contended that his wal k-through could not in any event constitute
a faulty inspection.

| reject that position. If the facts had established that a
defective condition existed at any time when Sullivan was present
and he failed to take corrective action, | would affirmthe
citation.

For the reasons stated herein Ctation 152667 shoul d be
vacat ed.

Bri ef

Respondent's counsel has filed a detailed brief which has
been nost hel pful in analyzing the record and defining the
i ssues. | have reviewed and considered this excellent brief.
However, to the extent that it is inconsistent with this decision
it is rejected.

ORDER

Based on the facts found to be true in the narrative portion
of this decision, and based on the conclusions of |aw as stated
herein, | enter the follow ng order

1. Citation 152663 and all proposed penalties therefor are
vacat ed.

2. CGtation 152667 and all proposed penalties therefor are
vacat ed.

John J. Morris
Admi ni strative Law Judge

o

~FOOTNOTE_ONE
1 30 CF.R 0O50.10 Imedi ate Notification.

If an accident occurs, an operator shall inmediately
contact the MSHA District or Subdistrict Ofice having
jurisdiction over its mne. If an operator cannot contact the
appropriate MSHA District or Subdistrict Ofice it shal
i medi ately contact the MSHA Headquarters O fice in Washi ngton
D.C. by tel ephone, toll free at (202) 783-5582.

~FOOTNOTE_TWOD

2 The record does not reflect the purpose of these
interviews. But in view of the fact that the safety officer and
conpany attorney were present on the day of the accident, | infer
t he operator was conducting its investigation pursuant to 30
C.F.R 050.11(b). The cited regul ation provides, in part,:



(b) Each operator of a mne shall investigate each
acci dent and each occupational injury at the mne. Each operator
of a mne shall develop a report of each investigation. No
operator may use Form 7000-1 as a report, except that an operator
of a mne at which fewer than twenty mners are enpl oyed may,
with respect to that mne, use Form 7000-1 as an investigation
report respecting an occupational injury not not related to an
accident. No operator may use an investigation or an
i nvestigation report conducted or prepared by MSHA to conply with
this paragraph. An operator shall submit a copy of any
i nvestigation report to MSHA at its request.



